
TOWN OF CHARLOTTE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MAY 16, 2013 
 

      APPROVED 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Jeff McDonald, Chair; Jim Donovan, Gerald Bouchard, Linda 
Radimer, Donna Stearns. Absent: Paul Landler, Peter Joslin. 
ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Town Planner; Tom Mansfield, Zoning 
Administrator.  
OTHERS: Nancy Sabin, Rocky Ober, Henrietta Scarlett Ober, Ryan Ober, Mindy 
Hinsdale, Jeff Hall, Elizabeth Pillard, and others. 
 
5:45 p.m. SITE VISIT: 1259 Lime Kiln Road followed by a site visit to 2296 
Greenbush Road to view the two parcels involved in a non-contiguous Planned 
Residential Development 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. McDonald, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
APPROVE REGULAR AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
The Regular Agenda was approved. 
 
Consent Agenda:  
The Sketch Plan letter to George & Claire Aube, 2 lot subdivision on Carpenter Road was 
pulled for further discussion. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Donovan, seconded by Ms. Radimer, to approve a Sketch Plan 
letter to George and Claire Aube regarding a 2 lot subdivision on Carpenter Road, 
with a minor change to include:  

• Note 4, add the following to read “…approximately a maximum of one acre 
in size.” 

VOTE: 5 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. Landler, Mr. Joslin); motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
APPROVE MINUTES FROM: March 21, April 4, and May 2, 2013 
MOTION by Mr. Donovan, seconded by Mr. Bouchard, to approve the Planning 
Commission minutes of March 21, 2013, as written, with edits. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 abstention (Ms. Stearns), 2 absent (Mr. Landler, Mr. Joslin); 
motion carried. 
 
Approval of the minutes from April 4 and May 2, 2013 were tabled until the next 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION          05/16/2013 PAGE 2 

Henrietta Ober; Sketch Plan Review, 2 lot non-contiguous PRD subdivision; 2296 
Greenbush Road 
Rocky Ober, Henrietta Ober and Ryan Ober, owners, appeared on behalf of the 
application. 
 
STAFF NOTES 
Mr. McDonald reviewed staff notes. 
 
APPLICANT COMMENTS 
Mr. Ober explained a proposal to transfer density from Meg Foster’s property located off 
Lime Kiln Road in order to meet Town regulations for a proposed 2 lot subdivision PRD 
at the Henrietta Ober property located at 2296 Greenbush Road. The Greenbush Road 
deed included a 220’ X 300’ view easement looking west that was put in place by George 
Lavallette. The view easement was in an area where a building envelope was proposed. A 
letter from Mr. Lavallette was submitted with the application that to allow a view 
easement modification, said Mr. Ober. 
 
Mr. Ober pointed out the proposed portions of land to be used as a density transfer from 
the 14.2 acre Foster parcel on a hand drawn map showing a 4.9 acres in red, and 4.92 
acres in yellow. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 
Mr. McDonald asked for Planning Commission members’ comments on a site visit to the 
Ober and Foster properties, conducted this date. 
 
Ms. Radimer said that the back lots were farmed with the land plowed. The acreage 
proposed for the density transfer seemed appropriate. Clustering the two houses was an 
ideal situation for the Ober property, said Ms. Radimer. 
 
Ms. Stearns said that the proposed house site made sense. 
 
Mr. Donovan asked if there was a possibility to shift the proposed house site more to the 
south. By building a structure in line with a row of trees on the property would make the 
house blend in with the surroundings versus sticking out. Issues with the proposal 
included an existing view easement with the property owner across the street, existing 
Scenic Road designation for portions of Greenbush Road, and Town owned land nearby. 
The Town would have an interest in keeping the vistas open, pointed out Mr. Donovan. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mr. Spencer, an abutter, asked if the trees Mr. Donovan spoke about were protected. Mr. 
Donovan replied no. 
 
Mr. Spenser suggested that clustering the houses may not be in Nancy Sabin’s best 
interests. Ms. Sabin’s property line was close to that area, said Mr. Spenser. Ms. Radimer 
explained that the Town Plan encouraged clustering of houses. There were vistas that 
included a panorama of Lake Champlain and surrounding mountains. Existing houses on 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION          05/16/2013 PAGE 3 

Greenbush Road were sited close to the road. The Town was trying to maintain the 
characteristics of the neighborhood and could make suggestions regarding where to site 
houses, said Ms. Radimer. 
 
Ms. Sabin asked if there was a ‘no build zone’ associated with the original subdivision of 
the farm. A no build zone should go with the title of the land and with not the individual 
owners. Is George Lavallette, or the Vermont Land Trust, receiving any compensation for 
agreeing to modify the view easement. What were the regulations on how far away from 
the end of a right-of-way a structure could be built, asked Ms. Sabin. Mr. Mansfield 
explained that the Town had 50’ setbacks from property lines. There were no rules on 
how far away a structure could be built from a right-of-way. The driveway was a private 
easement/right-of-way, said Mr. Mansfield. 
 
Mr. McDonald explained that the Planning Commission could negotiate building 
envelopes and house sites. Property line setbacks could be reduced for a Planned 
Residential Development as long as the density requirements were met. We don’t know if 
the view easement is a legal easement. It would be up to the applicant to provide that 
information, said Mr. McDonald.   
 
Ms. Sabin reiterated that three different people have owned that property and the 
easement should go with the land. Mr. Bloch said that it was not an easement, but a 
restriction. Mr. Donovan clarified that if the Town was not involved with the easement, 
then we don’t have anything to do with it. The applicant was asking to modify the view 
easement, not the right-of-way. Someone has a right to it and the applicant needs to check 
the land records. 
 
Ms. Sabin read a copy of the Patricia Lavallette Final Plat records, dated November 10, 
1997.  
 
Mr. Ober said he would research the land records. George Lavallette was not receiving 
any compensation, stated Mr. Ober. 
 
Mr. Bloch said that the current building envelope was 100’ from the property line. 
 
Mr. McDonald noted that the Lot 1 building envelope has been established on the 
subdivision map and showed setbacks. The applicant wanted to adjust the building 
envelope to a smaller area and create a second parcel, said Mr. McDonald. 
 
Ms. Radimer said that the view easement, Note 10, came off a recorded Mylar, which 
would need to be amended. 
 
Mr. Donovan suggested that the applicant look at Note 9 regarding the 1997 Final Plat 
approval related no build zones. 
 
Mr. McDonald asked if Lot 1 would be subdivided into two lots. Mr. Ober replied yes. 
 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION          05/16/2013 PAGE 4 

Ms. Sabin asked for clarification of the warranty deed, February 10, 1998, Vol. 97, page 
277, of the land records. Mr. McDonald said that was a description of the property and 
was a written deed. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Donovan, seconded by Ms. Radimer, to classify a request by 
Henrietta Ober for a Sketch Plan review for a 2 lot non-contiguous PRD subdivision 
at 2296 Greenbush Road as a minor non-contiguous PRD. 
DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Donovan explained that his support of the application was due in part of 
placing the proposed house so that it was set behind the trees to the west of the 
proposed building envelope. The Town tried not to put houses on ridges, or where 
they would stick up in a views cape. We tried to put them against backdrops so they 
blended in. If the trees were not there, then he would say the views were important 
to the person across the street and as view from the road toward the mountains. He 
hasn’t looked closely at the trees yet.  The applicant could thin the trees for a view 
through the trees. Some of the trees should be preserved, suggested Mr. Donovan. 
  
Ms. Radimer said that during the site visit she had noted that there was a slight 
drop in elevation looking from the east. A house could be sited in that lower 
elevation, suggested Ms. Radimer. Mr. Ober clarified that there was an old stone 
wall and then the land dropped down 4-5’.  Mr. Donovan said that a house would 
still stick up.  
 
Mr. Donovan suggested that the applicant try to keep some trees for a filtered view, 
or do some landscaping. His acceptance of the proposal was based on keeping some 
trees, said Mr. Donovan. Mr. (Ryan) Ober said that storms had damaged and 
dropped a lot of the trees. He liked the suggestion to plant some trees, such as 
willows. There was rubble and a slab from an old barn that no longer existed. Per 
haps some use could be made with the slab, said Mr. (Ryan) Ober. 
 
Mr. McDonald reviewed staff notes related to having one building envelope to keep 
it simple. The applicant could come back to amend a building envelope later, said 
Mr. McDonald. 
 
Mr. Bloch explained that a 25’ setback was less than the standard. The Planning 
Commission could approve the application as a PRD. The applicant should be 
aware that the right-of-way was a farm road and farm equipment used it, said Mr. 
Bloch. Mr. (Rocky) Ober noted that the deed says it was non-exclusive and a right-
of-way. 
 
Mr. Ober pointed out the location of his house and driveway on the site map. 
VOTE: 5 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. Landler, Mr. Joslin); motion carried. 
 
JEFF HALL; SKETCH PLAN REVIEW; 2 LOT SUBDIVISION; 993 
HINESBURG ROAD 
Jeff Hall, owner, appeared on behalf of the application. 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION          05/16/2013 PAGE 5 

 
STAFF NOTES 
Mr. McDonald reviewed staff notes, and said that a site visit was conducted on May 2, 
2013. 
 
APPLICANT COMMENTS 
Mr. Hall reviewed a proposed 2 lot subdivision of a 159+ acre farm that included a 2.88 
acre lot with farm buildings and a 10.18 acre lot. In 1987 he wanted to build a house on 
the north part of the property and had shifted a boundary so he could have road frontage 
for a 10+ acre lot. An existing red steel barn that was close to the lot line would be 
deconstructed and rebuilt elsewhere on another 140 acre farm he owned. That building 
would be used for hay and machinery storage, said Mr. Hall.  
 
Mr. Hall pointed out his existing 10+ acre lot and house on the site map, and an existing 
A-frame house with a 1 acre lot at the end of a road. There was a 30-40’ wide piece of 
land that was a connection to land in the back. He had conserved 4.4 acres and would 
transfer density from 2.2 acres from the north end of land near Mindy Hinsdale’s 
property, said Mr. Hall. Mr. Bloch clarified that density would come from the 140 acre 
farm land. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 
Mr. McDonald asked if a 2.8 acre lot would be created. Mr. Hall replied yes. 
 
Mr. Donovan suggested adding the little strip of land to the 10 acre lot at the same time to 
simply things.   
 
Mr. Bloch asked if Mr. Hall would need a right-of-way across the small lot onto his 
existing 10 acre lot. Mr. Hall replied yes. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Donovan, seconded by Ms. Stearns, to classify a request by Jeff 
Hall for a 2 lot subdivision, located at 993 Hinesburg Road, as a minor PRD 
subdivision. 
DISCUSSION: 
Ms. Hinsdale asked where the red steel barn would be rebuilt. Mr. Hall explained 
that there was a right-of-way to the A-frame house. The right-of-way went along a 
hedge row to the end of the meadow and he would rebuild the barn there. The 
building would be used for hay and machinery storage, reiterated Mr. Hall.  
 
Mr. Donovan asked if that large lot included septic and water that could be used for 
a future development. Mr. Hall replied that the lot was a farm and had agricultural 
use only. 
VOTE: 5 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. Landler, Mr. Joslin); motion carried. 
 
Mr. McDonald explained that the Planning Commission would send a summary Sketch 
Plan letter to the applicant. 
 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION          05/16/2013 PAGE 6 

DELIBERATIONS 
The Planning Commission entered Deliberations at 8:15 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted, Kathlyn Furr, Recording Secretary. 
 


